
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

Thursday, 9 November, 2017

10.00 am

Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone





AGENDA

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

Thursday, 9 November, 2017, at 10.00 am Ask for: Theresa Grayell
Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone

Telephone 03000 416172
Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting 

Membership 

Mrs A D Allen, MBE (Chairman), Mrs T Dean, MBE (Vice-Chairman), Ms A Brett, 
Ms H Carpenter, Mrs T Carpenter, Mr G Cooke, Mr T Doran, Ms S Dunn, Ms S Dunstan, 
Mr D Farrell, Ms L Fisher, Mrs L Game, Mrs S Gent, Mr R Graves, Mr S Gray, 
Mr S Griffiths, Ms S Hamilton, Mrs S Hammond, Mr A Heather, Ms N Khosla, Mr G Lymer, 
Mrs C Moody, Ms C  Mutton, Mr M J Northey and Mrs S Prendergast

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

Item 
No
The Chairman will assume that all Members will read the reports before attending the 
meeting.  Officers are asked to assume the same when introducing reports.

1 Membership 
To note that Sarah Hammond, Interim Director of Specialist Children’s Services, 
has joined the Panel in place of Philip Segurola. 

2 Apologies and substitutes 

3 Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 18 September 2017 (Pages 5 - 14)

4 Chairman's Announcements 

5 Verbal Update from Our Children and Young People's Council (OCYPC) 

6 Corporate Parenting Challenge Cards (Pages 15 - 18)

7 Verbal Update by Cabinet Member (Pages 19 - 20)



8 Safer care for children living away from home (Pages 21 - 28)

9 Accommodation and housing options for 16/17 year old homeless young people, 
children in care and care leavers (Pages 29 - 38)

10 Performance scorecard for Children in Care (Pages 39 - 52)

EXEMPT ITEMS
(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

John Lynch,
Head of Democratic Services
03000 410466

Wednesday, 1 November 2017

Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report.



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

MINUTES of a meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel held in Darent Room, 
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Monday, 18 September 2017.

PRESENT: Mrs A D Allen, MBE (Chairman), Mr G Cooke, Mr D S Daley (Substitute 
for Mrs T Dean, MBE), Mr T Doran, Ms S Dunstan, Ms M Emptage (Substitute for Ms 
S Dunn), Mr D Farrell, Ms L Fisher, Mrs S Gent, Mr R Graves, Mr S Gray, 
Ms S Hamilton, Mrs S Hammond (Substitute for Mr P Segurola), Mr A Heather, 
Ms N Khosla, Mr G Lymer, Ms C  Mutton, Mr M J Northey, Ms A Ogilvie (Substitute 
for Ms H Carpenter) and Mrs S Prendergast

ALSO PRESENT: Mr R W Gough and Mr R Barton

IN ATTENDANCE: Ms G O'Grady (Participation Co-ordinator, Specialist Children's 
Services), Mrs M Robinson (Management Information Unit Service Manager), 
Ms C Smith (Head of Fostering Service) and Miss T A Grayell (Democratic Services 
Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

27. Apologies and substitutes 
(Item 1)

Apologies for absence had been received from Hazel Carpenter, Teresa Carpenter, 
Trudy Dean, Sue Dunn, Lesley Game, Stuart Griffiths, Carolyn Moody and Philip 
Segurola.

Ailsa Ogilvie was present as a substitute for Hazel Carpenter, Dan Daley for Trudy 
Dean, Marion Emptage for Sue Dunn and Sarah Hammond for Philip Segurola. 

28. Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 21 July 2017 
(Item 2)

It was RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2017 are correctly 
recorded and they be signed by the Chairman. Arising from these, the Chairman 
requested that a briefing on the Housing Act and its impact upon Children in Care be 
added to the Panel’s work programme. 

29. Chairman's Announcements 
(Item 3)

1. The Chairman announced that Philip Segurola was shortly to leave Kent for a 
post in Croydon Council’s Children’s Services,  and she placed on record her sincere 
thanks to him for the work he had done in his role as Director of Specialist Children’s 
Services to support and improve services for children in  care in Kent.

2. The Chairman announced that, at the start of the OCYPC update item, a short 
film would be shown of children and young people enjoying the activities at recent 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



VSK participation events.  As this could not be shown in public, the meeting would be 
closed briefly to the press and public.  

Motion to exclude the Press and Public for Exempt Business 

It was RESOLVED that, under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

EXEMPT ITEM
(Open access to Minutes)

30. Film of activity days and participation events 

1. Robert Barton from the Young Adults Council introduced the film, which had 
been made and produced by the VSK apprentices while he had been working with 
them over the summer months, with the help and support of all the children who had 
attended activity days over the summer. 

2. The film showed children and young people of a range of ages enjoying 
activities at participation days around the county, with Roger Gough, Philip Segurola, 
Naintara Khosla, Gemma O’Grady, Jo Carpenter and the VSK apprentices.    

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

31. Verbal Update from Our Children and Young People's Council (OCYPC) 
(Item 4)

1. Ms Mutton, Mr Graves, Mr Barton and Ms Dunstan gave a verbal update on 
the work of the OCYPC, the Super Council and Young Adults Council and 
forthcoming participation events. The text of the update would be attached to these 
minutes. They then responded to comments and questions from the Panel, including 
the following:-

a) Panel members welcomed news of the Christmas dinner planned for care 
leavers who would be alone on Christmas Day and offered help providing 
food or making some other contribution to the day. A list of requirements 
could be reported to the 9 November meeting to allow time to organise 
contributions;  and

b)  it was noted that Chloe had volunteered to work on Christmas Day to 
organise and support the event, and the Panel thanked her for making this 
commitment. 

2. It was RESOLVED that the verbal updates be noted, with thanks.  

Details of the post-16 awards ceremony on 19 October were emailed to all 
Panel members after the meeting.

32. Corporate Parenting Challenge Cards 
(Item 5)

Page 6



1. Ms O’Grady introduced the report and asked Panel members to support the 
one challenge currently outstanding, the Virtual Triathlon to Calais’ taking place on 26 
October 2017. She undertook to circulate to Panel members details of how they 
could sponsor participants at this event. 

2. The participation events which had taken place over the summer had been an 
opportunity to gain feedback from young people, and new challenge cards were 
expected to arise from this. The Children in Care Council would meet monthly to 
consider any new challenge cards arising, and would then report them to the 
Corporate Parenting Panel.      

3. It was RESOLVED that the progress made on the challenges raised be noted 
and that Panel members support and attend the ‘Virtual Triathlon to Calais’ on 
26 October 2017. 

33. Verbal Update by Cabinet Member 
(Item 6)

1. The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Education, Mr R Gough, 
gave a verbal update on the following issues:-

Post-Ofsted Practice Development Plan – issues identified in the Ofsted inspection 
report had been mostly covered by work which was already in hand, for example 
working with district councils to co-ordinate and improve accommodation provision for 
16 and 17 year olds.  The practice development plan had been reported to the 
Children’s, Young People and Education Cabinet Committee on 7 September and 
would then be submitted to Ofsted as the County Council’s formal response to the 
inspection report. 
Report on celebration events – recent events held to celebrate the achievements of 
children in care had been excellent, and the range of activities and achievements 
being celebrated very broad.  Younger children had featured in the morning session 
and older children in the afternoon.  He urged Panel members to attend future 
celebration events. 
KCC personnel changes – Philip Segurola was to leave Kent County Council on 29 
September after four years as Director of Specialist Children’s Services for a similar 
post in Croydon. Mr Gough paid tribute to Mr Segurola’s distinguished service, 
particularly in increasing engagement and participation with children and young 
people in care and for his work with unaccompanied asylum seeking children. Sarah 
Hammond had been appointed as the interim Director of Specialist Children’s 
Services. Matt Dunkley would arrive in late November to take up the post of 
Corporate Director of Children, Young People and Education.
UASC latest status – there had been very little change since the last meeting in the 
number of UASC arriving in Kent, with numbers still very low compared to previous 
years and the effect of the National Transfer Scheme being apparent; there had been 
148 arrivals so far in 2017, compared with 388 for the whole of 2016 and 948 for the 
whole of 2015. However, the number of care leavers would increase steeply in 
January as approximately 796 UASC would reach 18, and it was expected that the 
UASC population would then decrease to 231.
Academic results – early results were yet to be verified but the initial picture was 
good, with Kent children in care scoring above the national average in all subjects.  
KS4 and GCSE results would be difficult to compare to previous years as the 

Page 7



parameters had changed nationally.  In this academic year, twenty young people in 
care had achieved sufficient grades to win university places.  
Leaving Care service – this had been nominated for an award by Children and 
Young People Now magazine and the winners would be announced on 24 
November.
Post - Adoption service – this had been nominated for an ‘Excellence in Adoption’ 
award.

2. Mr Gough responded to comments and questions from the Panel, including 
the following:

a) although there was still a gap in attainment between children in care and 
their peers not in care, and this was still wider than hoped, the picture had 
improved much in the five years since the establishment of the Virtual 
School Kent;

b) KS4 results were usually reported to the Children’s, Young People and 
Education Cabinet Committee twice a year, in October and in the new 
year, so a clearer overall picture should be possible then;

c) as part of the Prevent Strategy, foster carers were supported to deal with 
issues relating to the radicalisation of young people. The safety of foster 
carers was as important as that of the young people in their care, and both 
needed support to deal with such issues. A report on issues arising from 
the Prevent agenda would be prepared for a future meeting of the Panel;

d) foster carers were also trained to deal with issues experienced by UASC, 
and Ms Khosla advised that this training would be revised in the wake of 
recent terrorist activity. It was important also that foster carers should feel 
able to report any concerns of this type that they  had about the young 
people in their care and should have a clear process for doing this;

e) Panel members asked to be given as much information as possible about 
the support available for vulnerable young people and those caring for 
them, so they as corporate parents could be fully aware of issues. It was 
acknowledged that some information may not be able to be shared in a 
meeting open to the public, and thought would need to be given to how 
best to approach this; and

f) concern was expressed about further budget cuts in Specialist Children’s 
Services and that any such cuts may jeopardise progress made so far in 
issues such as those set out above.  Mr Gough said that he could not 
promise no more cuts but that he did not want to see any reversal in 
progress during his tenure as Cabinet Member. He added that some work 
could be approached differently, for instance, to place as many children as 
possible with in-house foster carers to minimise payments to external 
foster carers. Ms Khosla added that Kent made the lowest number of 
external foster placements of any authority in the UK.  A review of external 
fostering was currently being undertaken by Martin Narey and would look 
at Kent as an example of best practice. 

3. It was RESOLVED that the verbal updates be noted, with thanks.

Page 8



  

34. Update on Mind Of My Own (MOMO) app for Children and Young People 
(Item 7)

1. Ms O’Grady introduced the report and explained the background to the launch 
of the app in Kent in 2016, to allow children and young people in care to 
communicate in a way in which they were most familiar and comfortable, as it had 
become clear that young people did not like completing surveys as a way of providing 
feedback on the services they received. She assured Panel members that use of the 
app was secure and was only possible from devices which could use a secure model.  
The app was a national model which Kent had done much to develop.  It had first 
been made available in north Kent and later rolled out to cover the whole county, and 
in April 2017 had been extended and adapted for use by younger and disabled 
children. Training on use of the app had been given to 75% of frontline staff, and by 
October 2017 all frontline staff would have received training. MOMO had the approval 
of Ofsted, was popular among social workers and had attracted the attention of other 
local authorities, who wanted to use the same model for their own children in care. 
Foster carers would also be encouraged to use it.

2. It was RESOLVED that the progress made on the countywide roll-out of the 
Mind Of My Own app be noted, with thanks.    

35. Performance Scorecard for Children in Care 
(Item 8)

1. Mrs Robinson introduced the report and explained that, in response to a 
request from the Panel, a column had been added to compare Kent’s statistics with 
the national average. She responded to comments and questions from the Panel, 
including the following:-

a) Panel members needed to understand the definitions of the red, amber and 
green ratings used, For example, performance rated as ‘near target’ would 
be easier to understand if people knew that ‘near’ meant within 5% or 10% 
of target.  Mrs Robinson undertook to send Panel members a document 
which set out these definitions, which was done after the meeting.
 

b) members would also need to understand how targets were set, and to be 
satisfied that they were gauged correctly, to be sufficiently challenging but 
not unachievable.  Mrs Robinson explained that targets were agreed by the 
divisional management team and undertook to share this information with 
the Panel, which was done after the meeting.

2. It was RESOLVED that the information set out in the Children in Care 
scorecard, and given in response to comments and questions, be noted, with 
thanks.       

36. Placement Stability - the Sense Of Belonging service 
(Item 9)

1. Ms Smith introduced the report and added that, since last reporting on this 
issue to the Panel, a psychologist and two support workers had been appointed to 

Page 9



the Sense of Belonging Service. The former Therapeutic Parenting Service had 
ended in July 2017 and the last five young people being supported by that service 
had transferred to the Sense of Belonging Service.  Two issues previously identified 
and discussed by the Panel as having an impact on placement stability – young 
people excluded from school and those on a part-time timetable – would be included 
in latest project work.  Ms Smith responded to comments and questions from the 
Panel, including the following:-

a) work to help increase placement stability was welcomed and the need to 
support both young people and foster carers to achieve permanence was 
emphasised;

b) asked how progress and success could be identified and measured, and 
how soon it would be possible to identify the impact of current work, Ms 
Smith explained that the progress of the first cohort of young people to be 
placed under the Sense of Belonging service would be tracked; 

c) the psychologist appointed would work with and support both young people 
and their foster carers;

d) although it was hoped that more foster carers would be recruited, it was 
also important to work to retain those carers, and progress towards this 
aim would form part of the evaluation of the new service;

e) the importance of addressing the education elements of placement stability 
– young people excluded from school and those on a part-time timetable – 
was emphasised. The contribution of these elements to the overall picture 
was vital; and

f) Ms Smith advised the Panel that the annual Foster Carer Awards 
ceremony would take place on 4 October and invited them all to attend.  
Details of the event were emailed to all Panel members after the meeting.      

2. It was RESOLVED that the progress made over the last five months and the 
work plan for the improvement of placement stability be noted, with thanks. 

Page 10



Monday 18th September 2017

Corporate Parenting Panel Update –

On behalf of the Children in Care Councils and Young Adult Council

Show Film  - made with the help and support of all the children that attended our activities 
days over the Summer holidays.

 Summer Holiday Activities
- DCS Family Fun Day (VSK Supported this event) 
- Bewl Water (40 YP attended) 
- County Wide CIC Event (30YP attended) 
- Hever Castle (30 YP attended)
- 16+ & YAC Trip Thorpe Park (15 YP attended) 
- Creed Outdoor Learning, at Bay Point (30YP attended) 
- Little Potters (15 YP attended) 
- Railway Children (22 YP attended) 
- West Kent Family Fun day (VSK Supported) 

Good News!

We are hoping to have 2 more apprentices joining our team soon, and are going to be advertising 
again shortly.

Countywide
The Countywide Children in Care Celebration was held on Monday 31st July 2017. The event was 
attended by young people in care who attended the children in care councils over the past year, 
and also some who wanted a taster of what the Children in Care Councils are about. Member of the 
Corporate Parenting Panel attended the event and met with our young people.

We started the day off with making keyrings with lanyards the colours of our teams and playing 
games such as twister and limbo. After Philip Segurola welcomed everyone, we delivered and 
looked at what the Councils have been up to throughout the past year. A young person from each 
Council assisted with presenting the hard work they have done working together and what they 
enjoy about their Council. Then Roger Gough and Naintara Khosla presented rewards and 
certificates to our Council members for all their hard work and commitment.

We then had a discussion between our tables about what barriers are that prevent young people in 
care from attending  the councils, while having our discussion there where sweets to nibble on. 
After that we shared our points with the other groups and placed all the ideas on a board. Then we 

Page 11



had a break to enjoy chocolate brownies, lemon cakes and scones with cream and jam, while 
having some free time to play some games.

Later on after all the cakes were finished we got in our teams for the Countywide Sports Day. The 
events were, the three legged race, the skipping race, the bean bag team toss, the sack race and 
the team inflatable obstacle race; what ended up to be lots of laughs and giggles. Finally we ended 
the day by having free play on the inflatable obstacle course and nibbling on personalized Children 
in Care Council cakes.

Centrepoint Launch

On Monday 17th July 2017 The Participation Team went with Naintara to a Research Launch at 
Portcullis House in London. The research launch was about on the reasons why Care Leavers 
become homeless and what Local Authorities can do to help prevent future homelessness of Care 
Leavers. There were many reasons listed, and everyone took these on board and shared ideas on 
ways to prevent it. The meeting was very useful to the participation team and we will be looking 
at how we share this with the Young Adult Council.

Regional Children in Care Council Meeting

Some of us attended the South East Regional Children in Care Council meeting which was held 
Oxford. They were presented with videos about stigma about Children in Care and how it can 
affect a young person and how they can tackle the issue as a young person and how to assist the 
young person facing sigma as a professional. They got to hear the voices of young people and 
what stigma felt and meant to them. Also they had the chance to compare Kent’s pledges with 
other Councils in an open discussion and they learnt that Kent County Council is the only council 
with three Children in Care Councils; for different age groups. The young people also got to 
question the corporate parents about their rights as children in care and care leavers. 

Autumn Half term Activities

- 23rd October (EK/SK Arts and crafts day, 48 YP which will be split into 2 sessions)
- 25th October (WK/NK Arts and crafts day 48 YP which will be split into 2 sessions)

YAC
Andrew Rist came to the last YAC meeting to speak about the Life Long Links Project.  Andrew 
explained what he and his team do. He explained that they have started a new project called “Life 
Long Links”. He showed a presentation to the YAC members, what the project will look like. He then 
asked the YAC members, what they felt, how they can fit in and what they can do to help them. 
Some feedback included:- 

- Use cartoons as an example of a mobility map
- A couple of members would be interested if it was offered to them in the future
- Young children might not understand the process and get the wrong idea

Page 12



- Make a leaflet with questions for young people, so they get a better understanding
- Mobility Mapping – is helpful, engaging and fun

We have started a regular agenda item at YAC – called YAC-#Life Hacks – this is going to be a way 
we can give tips and hints on independent living skills but in a fun way and engaging way. For 
example: an easy way to   put a duvet cover. We are asking YAC members to bring their own life 
hacks to future meetings with a view to producing a document/pack to share with a wider 
audience.

YAC also have their fundraiser coming up on the 26th October at Sessions House. This is a “Virtual 
Triathlon” From County Hall Maidstone to Calais and back. All proceedings will go to the Umbrella 
Centre in Canterbury, which is a charity that provides support for people with Mental Health 
Illnesses. So please pop down and show your support for our staff and YAC members, whether it is 
to buy cake, donate, cheer us on or take part during your free time. (Thank you)

Other workstreams:

- Supporting the VSK Awards Ceremony, which was yesterday – more information about this 
great day will be coming to you

- Supporting a Canterbury Project – providing a Christmas dinner and some fun and games for 
care leavers on Christmas Day who have nowhere to go

- Art Competition for CiC – with a theme of Autumn

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and 
Education

Andrew Ireland, Corporate Director of Social Care, Health and 
Wellbeing

To: Corporate Parenting Panel - 9 November 2017

Subject: CORPORATE PARENTING CHALLENGE CARDS

Classification: Unrestricted

Electoral Division: All

Summary:  This report provides Members with an overview of progress made on 
previous and current challenges to Corporate Parents. 

Recommendation:  Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to NOTE 
the Challenge Card progress to date.

1. New Challenge Card Issued

1.1 The Young Adult Council (YAC) met on 5 October 2017 and the following new 
challenge was raised, discussed and agreed at the meeting:

When leaving foster care, young people still often have to pack up all or 
some of their belongings in black sacks when they move to live 
independently or semi-independently.  This can make them feel 
particularly worthless at what already could be a difficult time for them.  It 
was also thought the use of black sacks could signify that they are 
portrayed as ‘rubbish’ and of little value. 

YAC would like their Corporate Parents to agree to a ‘no bin bags’ policy 
and to ensure that all young people are provided with a suitcase or 
appropriate containers for moving home to enable them to pack up their 
belongings.

1.2 YAC have therefore asked that this challenge could be taken to the next 
Children in Care (CiC) Team Meeting for discussion and further action.

1.3 This challenge was also discussed at the Our Children and Young People’s 
Council (OCYPC)/Super Council meetings in October to see if our younger 
children have experienced the same issue when moving placements.

2. Challenge Card Update

2.1 With reference to the challenge card issued on 5 October 2017, considerable 
activity has already taken place. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Challenge card discussed at the Children in Care managers meeting on 
17 October

Researched current policy and training, which evidenced that it clearly 
states in the Foster Carers Handbook that bin bags should not be 
used. In addition, this area is also covered in the ‘Skills to Foster’ 
Training sessions on Day 3

Head of Fostering Service will look at reviewing and relaunching the ‘No 
Bin Bags’ ethos ensuring high profile. In conjunction with this, develop 
an escalation process for those foster carers who do not comply

Where young people have a lot of personal belongings, they may need 
to use bags to pack up their belongings.  It was agreed at the 
Children in Care meeting that, where necessary, appropriate moving 
boxes would be used along with bags of other colours so there would 
be no association with black bin bags.

3. Challenge Cards Update

3.1 Previous Challenge:

YAC would like Senior Staff, Members and Corporate Parents to support 
the upcoming YAC charity fundraiser 'Virtual Triathlon to Calais' on 
Thursday 26 October 2017 by attending the event and helping to raise 
sponsorship

3.2 The invitation to Corporate Parents to support this event was well received and 
strong commitment was given.  The event was promoted at Member Inductions, 
Corporate Parenting Panel and also noted in the Director of Specialist 
Children’s Services (SCS) newsletter which was distributed to all SCS staff.  

4. Other Updates

4.1 It was requested and agreed at the July Corporate Parenting Panel meeting that 
the Young Lives Foundation (YLF) be involved with the Challenge Card 
process.

4.2 The Virtual School Kent (VSK) Participation Team has arranged to attend the 
YLF Advocacy Team Meeting on 13 December to present and ensure that they 
are aware of the process around how the Challenge Cards work.  This will help 
ensure that YLF will be able to promote Challenge Cards with the young people 
who use their services; which in turn should support and contribute to 
improvements to the care children and young people receive.

5. Recommendation

5.1 Recommendation:  Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to 
NOTE the Challenge Card progress to date.

6. Background Documents

None

Page 16



7. Lead Officer
Tony Doran
Headteacher – Virtual School Kent
Tony.Doran@kent.gov.uk 
07821 038094

Lead Director
Sarah Hammond
Interim Director, Specialist Children’s Services
Sarah.Hammond@kent.gov.uk 
03000 411488

Page 17

mailto:Tony.Doran@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Sarah.Hammond@kent.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



By: Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and 
Education.

To: Corporate Parenting Panel – 9 November 2017

Subject: Verbal Update by the Cabinet Member 

Classification: Unrestricted

The Panel is invited to note verbal updates on the following issues:-

1. Update on 2017 exam results 
2. Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC)  update
3. Recent Virtual School Kent  (VSK) and other events

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People 
and Education

Andrew Ireland, Corporate Director of Social Care, Health 
and Wellbeing

To: Corporate Parenting Panel – 9 November 2017 

Subject: SAFER CARE FOR CHILDREN LIVING AWAY FROM 
HOME

Classification: Unrestricted 

Electoral Divisions: All
 
Summary: This report provides an outline of the changes in the assessment of Foster 
Carers updating the current British Association for Adoption and Fostering form F to 
include a specific risk assessment tool to support safer recruitment of foster carers.  The 
risk assessment template will also be used when Foster Carers are subject to their 
Annual Fostering Review or where there have been allegations or concerns about the 
care being provided to a looked after child.

Required outcome: To enhance and update the assessment of Foster Carers with a 
focus on risks and also ensure continuous focus on the safe care provided in fostering 
households.  The British Association for Adoption and Fostering form has been in place 
and is used across many local authorities in England.  Kent has taken an innovative 
step to use a tailored risk assessment tool to support a cultural change in practice.

Recommendation: The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to NOTE and COMMENT 
on the developments and issues in this report. 

1. Introduction

1.1 The Kent Fostering Service has been developing its social work practice and 
enhancing the care provided to children who are looked after away from home with 
a focus on safeguarding.  The developments in the Kent Fostering Service were 
noted in the recent Ofsted Report, this journey of enhancing good practice 
continues and includes working with other providers including Independent 
Fostering Agencies, Semi-Independent Providers and residential care homes.

1.2 The focus has been to review and update the policies and procedures relating to 
the assessment of Foster Carers and safe care planning to ensure they reflect 
best practice.  The Kent Fostering Service, with commissioning colleagues, has 
used the learning from Serious Case Reviews and internal practice reviews to 
strengthen best practice with updated tools and guidance.  The practice learning 
has been shared with commissioned colleagues and disseminated to Independent 
Fostering Agencies (IFA) and other provider partners.

1.3 There have been significant developments in the communication and joint working 
with the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO).  Procedures have been 
updated and there is a focus not only on the investigative process but also the 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



support that a child or young person requires following an investigation.  There is a 
renewed emphasis on the child to ensure their ‘voice’ is heard when dealing with 
child protection concerns expressed by children who are looked after.  All cases 
subject to a LADO referral are reviewed quarterly with local district areas and 
audits are undertaken to quality assure the standard of practice and timeliness of 
decision making with management oversight.  The audits have taken a holistic 
approach incorporating discussions with the IRO, social worker and fostering 
social worker to assess each professional’s engagement with the Foster Carers 
and young person. 

1.4 There has been an update of the training provided to fostering social workers to 
ensure that this particularly addresses the assessment of fostering households 
and enhances safeguarding to protect children and young people against potential 
sexual abuse.  Training has been supplemented with a risk assessment tool to 
assess Foster Carers and to review fostering households.

1.5 There is a continued focus on updating the culture within the Kent Fostering 
Service, where the focus for all social workers is safeguarding, achieved through 
developing a culture of learning from complaints, allegations and serious case 
reviews. 

2. Report

2.1 Through auditing of the case work, key themes and actions have been taken to 
achieve a safer Fostering Service and this learning has been extended so that it is 
being shared with independent providers for fostering, residential and semi-
independent accommodation.  A seminar is being held for providers in December 
2017.

2.2 The Kent Fostering Service has reviewed the recruitment and assessment of 
Foster Carers and considered the current British Association for Adoption and 
Fostering (BAAF) form F assessment template required updating and should 
include a stand-alone risk assessment.  A risk assessment tool for fostering 
households has been developed and this will be used with all new applications to 
become a Foster Carer and implemented throughout the service.  There will be an 
ongoing assessment of risk with yearly updates through the Foster Carer Annual 
Review.  The implementation of the Independent Fostering Review Team has 
provided additional scrutiny when reviewing risk. The template and learning will be 
shared with independent providers, with an expectation that it is completed for any 
fostering household caring for a Kent child. 

2.3 The Stage 1 application process has been reviewed and additional checks added 
including social media and the LADO service.  The key themes and learning from 
the allegations has been delivered through specific training to fostering staff, panel 
members and the agency decision makers. “Safeguarding and Professional 
Curiosity – Thinking the Unthinkable in Foster Care” was delivered on 25 
September 2017 and 16 October 2017.

2.4 Training commissioned through the Lucy Faithfull Foundation and Dr Graham Hill. 
Keeping Children Safe: Sexual Abuse in Foster Care was delivered on 13 October 
2017 and 1 November 2017.

Page 22



2.5 The content of the training included learning from audits, understanding the 
motivation of perpetrators of sexual abuse (who are in a position of trust); 
recognising indicators of potential abuse, risk assessment in fostering and 
enhancing social work skills to ensure safeguarding practice is core to the 
supervision and support of Foster Carers. 

2.6 To continue with the good practice noted by Ofsted, the Kent Fostering Service 
also ensures it is listening to children and young people in placement.  Children 
are provided with opportunities to make friends with other looked after children and 
discuss their worries with safe adults including the fostering social worker, the 
looked after child nurse or a teacher.  It is not always the social worker with whom 
the child will discuss their worries or general events in their life.  The participation 
team and the programme of placement stability a “Sense of Belonging” provides 
opportunities for looked after children to meet with their peer group and avoid them 
feeling that they are the “only one in care”.  Foster Carers’ support of children’s 
participation in events will be monitored through their annual reviews. 

2.7 A further initiative building on the sense of stability project is the setting up of a 
pilot group in East Kent for girls aged 12 -16 years, starting in January 2018 in 
partnership with Canterbury College.  This will be a group of 30 girls who meet 
regularly with a focus on Health, Wellbeing and Keeping Safe.  Canterbury College 
will provide a safe venue and staff/students that will support the girls with hair 
care, healthy eating and other relevant topics, with the group participating in the 
college’s end of year show.  The more sensitive subject of Keeping Safe will be 
co-facilitated with Health, through the Looked After Nurses.  This pilot will be a 
joint venture with Kent Fostering, Health, Virtual School Kent (VSK) apprentices 
and experienced female Foster Carers who will co-facilitate the group with 
Canterbury College.  It will provide a safe environment for girls to meet, be with 
their peers and trusted female adults, with the aim of having a safe and 
confidential environment where they feel able to disclose or reach out to someone 
away from the foster home to discuss their feelings or compare behaviour they 
might be experiencing at home.  This could be within their foster home, school or 
local community.  The longer-term vision is to extend this model across the county 
and include groups specifically for boys aged 12-16 years. 

2.8 As part of the strategy of safe care within the Kent Fostering Service, the template 
for Safe Care Plans for children will be updated and a more “child friendly” format 
implemented.  The preliminary work on the current Liberi template is being 
completed in consultation with the Kent Foster Carers Association (KFCA) and our 
Foster Carer Ambassadors.  The format for the template facilitates open 
communication with children about “Keeping them Safe” and has a robust 
approach in identifying risks.

2.9 In the learning from other Local Authorities, Serious Case Reviews and analysis of 
recent terrorist attacks, the Kent Fostering Service has included Prevent within its 
review of Safe Care practice.  The Kent Safeguarding Children Board (KSCB) 
Prevent training is mandatory for all registered Foster Carers.  Additional training 
on caring for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) is commissioned 
through Save the Children and targeted specifically at foster carers working with 
this group of young people.  In consultation with the Prevent and Channel 
Strategic Manager a “Review of Prevent checklist” has been implemented for 
fostering social workers to complete during statutory supervision visits to foster 

Page 23



carers.  Please refer to Appendix 1: Kent Fostering: Raising Awareness of 
Prevent. 

2.10 The “Sense of Belonging” Service will also provide safe care advice and guidance 
at times of crisis for children and Foster Carers and fostering social workers. A 
Clinical Psychologist will be based within fostering teams to support the 
implementation of changes to safe care practices. 

2.11 There has been a focus on placement stability with eLearning addressing the Care 
Planning Regulations.  This supports safe care as the placements are risk 
assessed with a placement plan completed with full information about the 
placement.  Pre-placement visits are encouraged.  Good placement matching and 
planned transitions ensure regulation and oversight by social workers are in place.  
Training and practice tools enable social workers to have knowledge and 
confidence to challenge where they assess that the care being provided is not 
sufficiently good enough for looked after children.

2.12 As part of the Ofsted report and in the Practice Development Plan there is a plan 
to review the remit of Adolescent Risk Management meetings.  Consideration is 
being given by the safeguarding unit to child protection case conferences being 
used in situations where a child may be looked after and they are also at 
significant risk.  This will support clearer use of child protection processes with 
core groups of professionals being involved with safeguarding planning.  The 
looked after child review can then remain the domain of the child’s views about 
their placement and care plan without it being focused on the management of high 
risks.

2.13 The Clinical Commissioning Groups remain committed to providing a service to 
looked after children.  Their management of health providers continues to be a 
challenge.  The County Council has raised and escalated the concern that Review 
Health Assessments are not in place and completed with the expected timescales.  
Kent Community Health NHS Trust is committed to improving this performance.

3. Conclusion

3.1 Significant progress has been made in the delivery of a good Fostering Service 
throughout 2016/17 and a further programme of ambitious practice is being 
implemented.  There is a focus on safeguarding practice and delivering safe care 
to children and young people living away from their families.  Safe care will be 
achieved through updated practice guidance along with risk assessment tools; and 
the involvement of Foster Carers with the active participation of young people.

4. Recommendation

4.1 Recommendation:  The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to NOTE and 
COMMENT on the developments and issues in this report. 

5. Background Documents

Children Act 1989: care planning, placement and case review

Page 24



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/children-act-1989-care-planning-
placement-and-case-review  

Kent County Council Inspection of services for children in need of help and 
protection, children looked after and care leavers
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/k
ent/054_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children%27s%20services%20and
%20review%20of%20the%20LSCB%20as%20pdf.pdf

6. Lead Officers
Naintara Khosla
Assistant Director for Corporate Parenting
Naintara.khosla@kent.gov.uk
03000 422241

Caroline Smith
Head of Fostering
Caroline.smith@kent.gov.uk
03000 415091

Lead Director
Sarah Hammond
Interim Director, Specialist Children’s Services
03000 411488
Sarah.hammond@kent.gov.uk

Page 25

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/children-act-1989-care-planning-placement-and-case-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/children-act-1989-care-planning-placement-and-case-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/children-act-1989-care-planning-placement-and-case-review
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/kent/054_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children%27s%20services%20and%20review%20of%20the%20LSCB%20as%20pdf.pdf
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/kent/054_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children%27s%20services%20and%20review%20of%20the%20LSCB%20as%20pdf.pdf
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/kent/054_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children%27s%20services%20and%20review%20of%20the%20LSCB%20as%20pdf.pdf
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/kent/054_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children%27s%20services%20and%20review%20of%20the%20LSCB%20as%20pdf.pdf
mailto:Naintara.khosla@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Sarah.hammond@kent.gov.uk


Appendix 1: Kent Fostering: Raising Awareness of Prevent

Page 26



Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Children, Young 
People and Education

Andrew Ireland, Corporate Director of Social Care, Health 
and Wellbeing

To: Corporate Parenting Panel – 9 November 2017 

Subject: ACCOMMODATION AND HOUSING OPTIONS FOR 
16/17 YEAR OLD HOMELESS YOUNG PEOPLE, 
CHILDREN IN CARE AND CARE LEAVERS

Classification: Unrestricted 

Electoral Divisions: All

Summary: Housing Related Support Services.  This paper outlines a proposal to 
remodel Housing Related Support Services for young people to ensure that the 
Council can prioritise statutory service users. Implementation of this new model will 
be in 2018 following a procurement exercise.  Whilst this new model is developed 
and procured, an interim arrangement is currently underway. This will give the 
Council greater control over referrals and support transition to the proposed new 
service.

Housing Options for 16/17 year old Homeless with an Update on the Homelessness 
Reduction Act 2017.  A new protocol is in place and has been agreed by the Kent 
Joint Policy and Planning Board, Kent Housing Group and the County Council’s 
Specialist Children’s Services division.  This supports greater working together and 
the Housing Related Support commissioning will provide appropriate accommodation 
for these young people, whether they require accommodation through children’s 
social care or they require housing under the homelessness legislation where 
accommodation by children’s social care is not appropriate.  There are opportunities 
for Districts to work closely with Specialist Children’s Services as the new 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 will be in place from April 2018.

Shared Accommodation Service.  This paper also provides an update on the current 
procurement of a new Shared Accommodation Service (predominantly used by 
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children and Asylum Care Leavers).  It identifies 
actions taken to deliver an improved service and tighter budgetary assurance using 
an inclusive blended weekly unit rate.

Recommendation: The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to NOTE the plans to 
commission a new Supported Accommodation Service with a focus on a greater 
number of statutory service users, NOTE the new protocol for 16 and 17 year old 
homeless young people and the update on Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 and  
NOTE the current procurement of a new Shared Accommodation Service.

1. Introduction

1.1 Foster Care and Supported Lodgings are established accommodation options 
for young people at 16 but other supported accommodation provision such as 

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



Semi-Independent Accommodation and Housing Related Support services are 
either expensive, of variable quality or offer limited access to statutory service 
users. 

1.2 Work is therefore underway to provide a seamless, consistent pathway of 
accommodation and support options for young people to enable them to acquire 
independent living skills at a time and location that is most appropriate for their 
circumstances. 

1.3 Housing Related Support (HRS) services form an essential option for young 
people looking to acquire the necessary skills to move on into fully independent 
living and as such these services are being refocused to ensure the maximum 
number of statutory service users can access this provision.

2. Current Housing Related Support Provision 

2.1 The primary aim of HRS provision is to prevent homelessness and promote 
independence and wellbeing for non-statutory clients.  There are currently 25 
former Supporting People HRS services across the county, providing 335 units 
of accommodation and support and 138 units of floating support for 16-25 year 
olds.  These are delivered for a budget of £2.8 million by 13 providers (see 
Appendix A)

2.2 HRS services are located across the county (see Appendix B).  Accommodation 
based support typically consists of self-contained flats; young people receive 
between 2-30 hours of support per week for a maximum of two years.

2.3 Services are jointly funded between Kent County Council and District/Borough 
Councils.  The County Council pays for the support and District/Borough 
Councils pay housing management (including rent) via Housing Benefit.  Being 
in supported accommodation typically improves the chances of a young person 
going on to find social housing when moving on.

3. Housing Related Support Future Planning 

3.1 HRS services for young people need to prioritise care leavers and homeless 
16/17 year olds to support the Council in meeting its statutory obligations.  The 
refocused HRS service will form a key strand in the accommodation offer which 
the Council provides for 16-21 year olds (see Appendix C).

3.2 It is proposed that the new service will be procured in 2018 and embed changes 
that have taken place during the interim year.

4. Housing Related Support: The Interim Year – Progress to Date 

4.1 Since April 2017, joint multi-agency panels have been developed, between 
service providers, KCC Commissioners, Adolescent Support Team staff, 
Leaving Care staff and District Housing officers.  Panels are also being currently 
expanded to include Children in Care staff.

4.2 Panels are in place to monitor referrals into HRS services and ensure that a 
higher proportion of statutory service users are accessing services.  

Page 30



4.3 Control over panel processes will:

 Create a seamless pathway and referral process for service users to 
access appropriate accommodation and support

 Reduce usage of spot-purchased, less well-regulated semi-independent 
provision

 Enable current providers to begin remodelling prior to the commissioning 
of new services (ensuring higher quality bids in future tendering 
processes)

 Prepare providers for statutory service users and design services to meet 
their needs, which at times can be complex.

5. Housing Options for 16/17 year old Homeless with an update on the 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017

5.1 A joint protocol for 16 and 17 year olds who present as homeless is in place and 
has been agreed by the Kent Joint Policy and Planning Board (JPPB), Kent 
Housing Group (KHG) and the Council’s Specialist Childrens Services (SCS) 
division.  This protocol supports greater working together and the HRS 
commissioning will provide appropriate accommodation for homeless 16 and 17 
year old young people, whether they require accommodation through SCS or 
under the Homelessness legislation where accommodation under Section 20 
Children Act 1989 by SCS is not appropriate.  Previously, HRS has been used 
for vulnerable adults and was not focused on the statutory responsibilities of 
SCS, specifically 16 and 17 year old homelessness and Care Leavers.  To 
ensure there remains a service for vulnerable adults, SCS has committed £1m 
to Adult Social Care Services for the re-commissioning of adults HRS.  

5.2 There are opportunities for Districts to work closely with the Children, Young 
People and Education Directorate through the new Homelessness Reduction 
Act 2017, which will be in place from April 2018.  The Homelessness Reduction 
Act 2017 sets out a framework for the biggest changes to homelessness 
legislation since the 1977 Act was introduced.  Where Local Authority Housing 
(LHA) Officers cannot prevent or relieve homelessness, there remains the duty 
to manage homelessness.  Advice services must meet the needs of people 
released from prison, Care Leavers, ex-Armed Forces, victims of domestic 
abuse, people leaving hospital, those suffering from mental illness and anyone 
else identified more at risk of homelessness.  There is also an amendment to 
the 1996 Act which is to allow, in certain circumstances, a local connection for 
care leavers in the area where they are living prior to their 16th birthday and up 
until they are 21 years of age.  This will impact on local district housing offices 
who will have homelessness duties to care leavers placed in Kent by other local 
authorities.  It does mean that Kent Care Leavers placed out of the area, 
including Medway, will be able to have their housing needs met locally if they 
meet the criteria for local connections.

6. Shared Accommodation UASC and Asylum Care Leavers - Introduction 

6.1 SCS purchase a Shared Accommodation Service for over 500 Unaccompanied 
Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) Children in Care and Asylum Care Leavers 
aged 16-21.  The primary aim of the service is to provide suitable 
accommodation that is stable, safe and well maintained for UASC and Asylum 

Page 31



Care Leavers.  Table 1 reflects the current cohort of UASC (aged 16+) and 
Asylum Care Leavers and their accommodation type.  The majority of Asylum 
Care Leavers live independently.  The 18+ Care Leaving Service and the SCS 
Management Information Unit work continuously to ensure accurate recording 
on the database of the placement type.  These do change depending on the 
placement movements of all young people aged 16 years and above.

Table 1 

UASC and Asylum Care Leavers as at  11 October 2017

Latest In Touch Accommodation Code Authority 

Kent Medway OLA
Address 
Not 
Known 

Grand 
Total

B - With parents or relatives/ 
Connected Person 5 0 33 2 40

C - Community home or other form of 
residential care 1 0 0 0 1

D - Semi-independent, transitional 
accommodation 28 10 40 1 79

E - Supported Lodgings (Not Former 
Foster Carer) 17 0 4 0 21

K - Ordinary Lodgings without formal 
support 3 0 1 0 4

Not Recorded/Blank 18 0 10 43 71
R - Residence not known 10 1 4 20 35
S - No fixed abode / homeless 3 2 3 7 15
T - Foyers 0 1 3 0 4
U - Independent living 325 100 70 7 502
W - Bed and breakfast 1 0 0 0 1
X - In custody 5 2 1 0 8
Y - Other accommodation 6 0 3 1 10
Z - Supported Lodgings (Staying Put) 12 3 1 0 16
Grand Total 434 119 173 81 807

6.2 The original value of these contracts was in the region of £1.8 million 
(approximately 300 bed spaces) per annum.   Due to a large increase in the 
number of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children in Kent, annual spend for 
2016-17 was approximately £4.4 million (approximately 600 bed spaces).

  6.3 The current contracts expire on 28 February 2018 and a procurement exercise 
is now underway.  To maintain current provision during the procurement phase, 
contracts with existing providers will continue through a Single Source Action 
for a six month period. 

Page 32



7. New Shared Accommodation Service

7.1 During the summer Children’s Commissioning, SCS and the County Council’s 
procurement team met with the current providers to gather intelligence to inform 
future commissioning arrangements.  Work also focused on containing costs 
through the introduction of a blended weekly rate which covers the payment, 
management and oversight of damages as well as standard repairs.

7.2 The new service is currently being procured.  The contract will run for a five 
year period from 24 October 2017 until 31 October 2022 to provide for longer 
term stability of placements and costs. The contract will enable new placements 
to be made from the commencement date, at the new inclusive rate, whilst 
supporting the mobilisation of existing clients over a longer period to ensure 
their safety and wellbeing is maintained. 

7.3 The main advantages of the new service are:

 Housing Benefit – The provider will be responsible for the management of the 
necessary paperwork to support the housing benefit process, a significant 
contributor to the speed and access to payments received

 Damages – The new weekly inclusive rate covers the cost of damages and 
repairs.   This has the advantage of passing the management of risk to the 
provider, reducing operational resource time and providing greater cost 
certainty for the County Council

 Accountability and Clear Processes – Duplication of activity will be removed 
and processes simplified to reduce the administrative burden

 Key Performance Indicators –The introduction of robust Key Performance 
Indicators to allow the service to hold the provider to account with greater 
rigor.

8. Conclusion

8.1 The commissioning of these two services will seek to address a number of 
current contractual weaknesses and support the County Council’s delivery of 
the Sufficiency Strategy. 

9. Recommendation

9.1 Recommendations:   The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to NOTE the 
plans to commission a new Supported Accommodation Service with a focus on a 
greater number of statutory service users, NOTE the new protocol for 16 and 17 year 
old homeless young people and the update on the Homelessness Reduction Act 
2017 and NOTE the current procurement of a new Shared Accommodation Service.

10. Background Documents

None

Page 33



11. Report Author
Karen Mills
Commissioning Manager
03000 416486
karen.mills@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director
Sarah Hammond
Interim Director - Specialist Children’s Services
03000 411488
sarah.hammond@kent.gov.uk

Page 34

mailto:karen.mills@kent.gov.uk
mailto:philip.segurola@kent.gov.uk


Appendix A

Current Young People’s Housing Related Support providers

Porchlight – Canterbury, Swale, Tonbridge, Dover
Home Group – Ashford, Dover, Maidstone, Dartford
Look Ahead - Shepway
Chapter 1 – Tunbridge Wells
Centra - Swale
DePaul UK - Gravesham
West Kent YMCA – Tunbridge Wells
YMCA Thames Gateway – Dartford
Sanctuary Supported Living – Ashford, Maidstone (plus Countywide Floating 
Support)
Cantercare - Canterbury
LIFE Housing – Dartford 
Family Mosaic - Gravesham
Golding Homes - Maidstone

Page 35



Appendix B

P
age 36



Appendix C

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People 
and Education

Andrew Ireland, Corporate Director of Social Care, Health 
and Wellbeing

To: Corporate Parenting Panel – 9 November 2017

Subject: PERFORMANCE SCORECARD FOR CHILDREN IN CARE

Classification: Unrestricted

Electoral Divisions: All

Summary: The performance scorecard for Children in Care identifies the key 
performance data and targets that need to be monitored in order to promote the best 
outcomes for children and young people looked after by Kent County Council.  The 
latest performance scorecard for August 2017 is attached to this report

Recommendation: Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to NOTE 
and COMMENT on the performance data in the Children in Care scorecard.

1. Introduction 

1.1 Performance scorecards have been developed within Specialist Children 
Services to identify and monitor progress on a range of areas where 
improvements in performance and practice will lead to better outcomes for 
children and young people.

1.2 The latest Children in Care Scorecard for August 2017 is attached as Appendix 
1.

2. Context

2.1 The Children in Care Scorecard has been developed to provide the Corporate 
Parenting Panel with an overview of the key performance measures for 
Children in Care. 

2.2 The report is split into sections and includes a range of performance indicators 
and activity information. 

2.4 The Children in Care Scorecard is currently focused on information provided by 
Specialist Children’s Services.  It is intended that performance reports from 
partners will also be shared so that performance issues can be further 
understood across organisations resulting in improved outcomes for children 
and young people.

Page 39

Agenda Item 10



3. Recommendations

3.1 Recommendation: Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to 
NOTE and COMMENT on the performance data in the Children in Care scorecard.

4. Background documents

None

5. Contact details

Lead Officer
Maureen Robinson
Management Information Service Manager
03000 417164
Maureen.Robinson@kent.gov.uk

Lead Director
Sarah Hammond
Interim Director, Specialist Children’s Services
03000 411488
Sarah.hammond@kent.gov.uk

Page 40

mailto:Maureen.Robinson@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Sarah.hammond@kent.gov.uk


Publication Date: 03 October 2017

SC SCS Management Information

Kent Specialist Children's Services

Children in Care
Performance Report

Produced by

Aug 2017

Page 41



Guidance Notes

The aim of this indicator is to achieve the highest number/percentage possible.

The aim of this indicator is to achieve the lowest number/percentage possible.

The aim of this indicator is to stay close to the target that has been set.

A red rating indicates that the current performance is signficantly away from the target set.

An amber rating indicates that the current performance is close to the target set.

A green rating indicates that the current performance has met the target that has been set.

Children in Care Numerator

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children Denominator

Becoming Looked After Special Educational Need

Other Local Authority Initial Health Assessment

Year to Date (April to March) Qualified Social Worker

Rolling 12 Months Independent Review Officer

Snapshot Placement Order

Annual Special Guardianship Order

Academic Year to Date (Sept to Aug) M Monthly Figure

http://kccbusiness/sites/FSCMI/SitePages/Contact%20Us.aspx 

Direction of Travel

RAG Ratings

Polarity

T

L

H

G

A

R

No RAG Rating
RAG ratings are not applied to activity based indicators.  Also, if the denominator is lower than 5 no 

RAG rating has been applied.

To access the child level data underpinning the figures in this report or to request reports and/or analysis as a one off 

please log a request through the SCS Performance Management site:

Some of the performance indicators on the scorecard are measured using a Year to Date (YTD) approach - April to 

the end of the current month. For the first few months, it is advisable to treat the results of these indicators with a little 

caution as they are often based on a small cohort of children and therefore the percentages can be easily skewed.   

SGO

PO

Child Level Data and Ad hoc Requests

YTD Data

AC YTD

A

SS

A green arrow indicates that performance has improved this month when compared to last month. 

Depending on the polarity of the indicator, an improvement in performance could either be a 

reduction or increase in numbers/percentage.

Denom

NumCIC

UASC

Key To Abbreviations

A red arrow indicates that performance has worsened this month when compared to last month. 

Depending on the polarity of the indicator, a worsening in performance could either be a reduction 

or increase in numbers/percentage.

An amber arrow indicates that performance has remained the same as last month.

R12 IRO

QSW

BLA

IHA

SEN

OLA

YTD

Produced by: SC SCS Management Information

Publication Date: 03/10/2017 CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017 Page 2 of 11

Page 42

http://kccbusiness/sites/FSCMI/SitePages/Contact Us.aspx


% of CIC Cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 99.2% G 1,689 1,702 98% 99.0% G 99.4% G
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H R12M 95.8% G 4,731 4,939 95% 95.9% G 97.6% G
% of CIC for 18 months and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 months H SS 46.5% A 545 1,173 60% 45.2% A 52.0% A
CIC Placement stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 11.6% A 205 1,774 10% 11.8% A 11.6% A 10% *
CIC Placement stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 70.1% G 397 566 70% 69.4% G 70.2% G 68% *
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements (exc UASC) H SS 86.0% G 984 1,144 85% 86.2% G 86.0% G
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (exc UASC) H SS 79.0% A 1,069 1,353 80% 79.9% A 79.0% A 87% *

CIC Per 10,000 population aged under 18 (exc UASC) SS 42.6 1,408    330,400 42.2 42.6 57 **

Number of Kent CIC SS 1,774 1,775 1,408

Number of OLA CIC placed in Kent L SS 1,315 1,314

% of CIC for 18 months and allocated to the IRO for the last 12 months H SS 69.2% 812 1,173 66.9% 73.6%

% becoming looked after within 24 months of previous episode L YTD 10.4% 36 347 12.2% 12.6%

% Open to Youth Offending Services L SS 2.7% 48 1,774 2.8% 3.0%

% in P&V placements L SS 4.7% 83 1,774 4.6% 5.9%

% of Kent CIC Placed Outside of Kent (exc Medway) SS 7.7% 137        1,774 7.8% 5.6%

% of Kent CIC Placed Outside of Kent (inc Medway) L SS 14.1% 251 1,774 14.4% 10.5%

No. of current CIC with a permanent exclusion this academic year L AC YTD 1 1 1

No. on a part-time timetable L SS - - -

% of CIC for at least 12mths and aged 16-18 at month end with Education Status of NEET L SS 13.8% 71 514 13.1% 16.2%

% looked after continuously for 12 months with an SEN Statement or Support/EHCP L SS

% of EHCPs Issued within 20 weeks for EHCP referrals made while child was CIC H AC YTD

% of IHA referrals within 5 working days of becoming looked after H R12M 84.6% A 408 482 90% 86.0% G 84.6% A
% of Initial Health Assessments taking place within 20 working days H R12M 70.5% R 341 484 90% 69.4% R 70.5% R
% of Health assessments held within required timescale H SS 84.5% R 1,306 1,545 90% 83.5% R 89.4% A 90% **
% of Dental Checks held within required timescale H SS 89.4% A 1,382 1,545 90% 89.0% A 90.3% G 84% **
% of CIC aged at least 17.5 with a health history completed H SS 5.9% R 13 220 90% 5.6% R 6.9% R

SDQ Average of Questionnaires Completed Since 1st April (for Current LAC) L YTD 14.5 2,122 146 14.6 14.8

% of cases adoption agreed as plan within 4 mths, for those with an agency decision H R12M 61.3% R 68 111 80% 62.4% R - -
Ave. no of days between bla and moving in with adoptive family (for children adopted) L R12M 339.6 G 33,961 100 426.0 339.8 G - - 593 **
Ave. no of days between court authority to place a child and the decision on a match L R12M 114.9 G 10,796 94 121.0 116.4 G - - 223 **
% of Children leaving care who were adopted (exc UASC) H R12M 16.3% G 100 613 15.0% 15.5% G 16.3% G 15% **

% where: 8 weeks from 'adoption being made the Care Plan' to 'Agency Decision to adopt' H R12M 89.2% 99 111 88.0% - -

% of sibling groups that were placed together (where the plan was to place them together) H R12M 88.6% 31 35 88.6% - -

% of CIC with a current Agency Decision, not Placed for Adoption L SS 2.9% 51 1,774 3.3% - -

% who ceased to be Looked After who became subject to a SGO H R12M 4.4% 56 1,280 4.4% - -

% who ceased to be Looked After who became subject to a SGO (exc. UASC) H R12M 9.0% 55 613 9.0% - -

% of Returner Interviews completed within 3 working days for CIC H R12M 74.7% R 708 948 85% 76.0% A - -

Number CIC with Missing Episode started in the month L M 80 88 69

Number of CIC missing episodes started in the month lasting longer than 48 hours H M 32 40 29

Complaints made by CIC (or on their behalf) during the month L M 4 7

Care Leavers in suitable accommodation (of those we are in touch with) H R12M 93.8% G 1,262 1,346 90% 94.1% G 93.0% G 93% **
Care Leavers in employment, education or training (of those we are in touch with) H R12M 65.0% G 875 1,346 65% 64.2% A 49.9% R 56% **
% of Care Leavers with a Pathway Plan updated in the last 6 months H R12M 91.6% G 1,261 1,376 90% 90.7% G 92.7% G
% of Care Leavers we are in contact with (inc UASC) H R12M 83.6% A 1,338 1,601 85% 84.9% A 87% **

Percentage of Current Care Leavers with a Staying Put Arrangement H SS 4.6% 66 1,439 4.7% 7.4%

% of CIC team posts filled by KCC Permanent QSW (exc Fostering & Adoption) H SS 78.5% A 90.2 114.9 83% 79.4% A - -
Ave Caseloads of social workers in CIC Teams (District Teams Only) L SS 16.7 A 1,686 101.2 15.0 17.0 A - -
Ave Caseloads of IROs L SS 66.9 G 1,774 26.5 70.0 64.5 G 55.2 G

* indicates national figures from 2014/15

** indicates national figures from 2015/16

Children

Education

Health & Wellbeing

Adoption

Care Leavers

Staffing

Missing Children

Aug 2017Scorecard

Indicator

P
o

la
ri

ty Data 

Period

Latest Result and 

RAG Status
Num Denom

Target for 

17-18

Last month's result

and RAG Status
Excluding UASC

Complaints
N

at
io

n
al

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

(E
n

gl
an

d
 R

at
e)

N/A - school holidays

Data not available due to new system implementation

Data not available due to new system implementation

Produced by: SC SCS Management Information

Publication Date: 03/10/2017 CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017 Page 3 of 11

Page 43



Age Female Male Grand Total Disability Female Male Grand Total

0 30 30 60 Autism or Asperger's syndrome 15 43 58

1 25 14 39 Behaviour 7 35 42

2 21 16 37 Communication 6 16 22

3 12 17 29 Consciousness 9 7 16

4 9 17 26 Hand Function 1 1

5 13 19 32 Hearing 3 9 12

6 9 23 32 Incontinence 3 8 11

7 24 25 49 Learning 26 47 73

8 24 37 61 Mobility 11 11 22

9 37 40 77 Personal Care 2 8 10

10 32 54 86 Vision 5 8 13

11 43 45 88 Other DDA 6 13 19

12 36 66 102 None 596 1002 1598

13 50 71 121

14 61 81 142

15 68 114 182 UASC? Female Male Grand Total

16 64 172 236 Yes 15 351 366

17 93 282 375 No 636 772 1408

Grand Total 651 1123 1774 Grand Total 651 1123 1774

Nationality Female Male Grand Total Ethnicity Female Male Grand Total

Afghanistani 132 132 A1 - White British 548 660 1208

Albanian 16 16 A2 - White Irish 3 3 6

Bangladeshi 1 3 4 A3 - Any other White background 25 45 70

Belgian 1 1 A4 - Traveller of Irish Heritage 2 2

British 571 697 1268 A5 - Gypsy/Roma 3 10 13

Congolese 1 1 B1 - White and Black Caribbean 12 21 33

Czech 2 2 B2 - White and Black African 4 9 13

Egyptian 15 15 B3 - White and Asian 6 6 12

Eritrean 7 86 93 B4 - Any other mixed background 24 12 36

Ethiopian 10 10 C1 - Indian 4 4

German 2 2 C2 - Pakistani 1 1 2

Guinean 2 2 C3 - Bangladeshi 1 1 2

Indian 1 1 C4 - Any other Asian background 1 31 32

Iranian 25 25 D1 - Caribbean 1 1

Iraqi 1 15 16 D2 - African 13 118 131

Irish 2 4 6 D3 - Any other Black background 1 1 2

Italian 1 1 E1 - Chinese 1 1

Ivorian 1 1 E2 - Any other ethnic group 6 200 206

Jamaican 1 1 Grand Total 651 1123 1774

Kuwaiti 2 2

Latvian 4 1 5

Lithuanian 1 6 7

Moroccan 1 1

Nepalese 3 3

Nigerian 1 3 4

Not Recorded 44 35 79

Pakistani 1 1 2

Palestinian 1 1

Polish 2 2

Portugese 1 1

Slovak 4 11 15

Slovenian 2 4 6

Sri Lankan 1 1 2

Sudanese 13 13

Syrian 1 17 18

Turkish 1 1

Vietnamese 4 11 15

Grand Total 651 1123 1774

Demographic Breakdown for Kent LAC as at 31/08/2017

Produced by: SC SCS Management Information

Publication Date: 03/10/2017 CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017 Page 4 of 11

Page 44



Referrals

Trend Graphs

* Data between Sep 2013 and Mar 2014 is not available as reporting was suspended due to the implementation of a new system.

** An exercise was undertaken to re-open closed cases with care leaver status in 2016 reporting year, therefore, these figures do show an increase

1,000

1,050

1,100

1,150

1,200

1,250

1,300

1,350

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

Feb
16

May
16

Aug
16

Nov
16

Feb
17

May
17

Aug
17

OLA LAC in Kent over the last 5 years 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

Feb
16

May
16

Aug
16

Nov
16

Feb
17

May
17

Aug
17

% of CIC with 3+ placements in 12 months over the last 
5 years* 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

Feb
16

May
16

Aug
16

Nov
16

Feb
17

May
17

Aug
17

LAC over the last 5 years UASC

Citizen

920

940

960

980

1,000

1,020

1,040

1,060

1,080

1,100

1,120

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

Feb
16

May
16

Aug
16

Nov
16

Feb
17

May
17

Aug
17

LAC placed in KCC Foster Care over the last 5 years 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Sep
14

Nov
14

Jan
15

Mar
15

May
15

Jul
15

Sep
15

Nov
15

Jan
16

Mar
16

May
16

Jul
16

Sep
16

Nov
16

Jan
17

Mar
17

May
17

Jul
17

CIC Placed Outside Kent (exc Medway) 
over the last 3 years 

UASC

Citizen

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Sep
14

Nov
14

Jan
15

Mar
15

May
15

Jul
15

Sep
15

Nov
15

Jan
16

Mar
16

May
16

Jul
16

Sep
16

Nov
16

Jan
17

Mar
17

May
17

Jul
17

% Leaving Care over the last 3 years 
SGO

Adoption

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

Apr
15

Jun
15

Aug
15

Oct
15

Dec
15

Feb
16

Apr
16

Jun
16

Aug
16

Oct
16

Dec
16

Feb
17

Apr
17

Jun
17

Aug
17

Care Leavers** 
UASC

Citizen

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

Sep
14

Nov
14

Jan
15

Mar
15

May
15

Jul
15

Sep
15

Nov
15

Jan
16

Mar
16

May
16

Jul
16

Sep
16

Nov
16

Jan
17

Mar
17

May
17

Jul
17

CIC Placed Outside Kent (inc Medway) 
over the last 3 years 

UASC

Citizen

Produced by: SC SCS Management Information

Publication Date: 03/10/2017 CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017 Page 5 of 11

Page 45



Kent SE SN England

Reading 41.0% 41.0% 38.1% 41.0% 3rd

Writing 49.0% 46.0% 42.1% 46.0% 2nd

Maths 42.0% 37.0% 28.2% 41.0% 3rd

RWM 23.0% 24.0% 25.0% 25.0% 4th

20.0% 16.4% 15.6% 17.5% 2nd

21.4 21.8 23.29 22.8 3rd

-1.16 -1.14 -1.11 -1.14 3rd

15.2% 12.4% 11.7% 10.4% 4th

9.3% 10.3% 9.4% 9.1% 2nd

Key:
GLD  Good level of development SN Statistical Neighbours

RWM  Reading, Writing and Maths SE  South East Region

Education Data

Key Stage Measure

Performance

Quartile

Key Stage 2 % at least expected standard

% of Children who have been continuously looked after for 12 months with at least 1 fixed term 

exclusion from school

% of children looked after who are classed as persistent absentees

Key Stage 4

% A*- C in English & Maths

Attainment 8

Progress 8

Produced by: SC SCS Management Information

Publication Date: 03/10/2017 CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017 Page 6 of 11

Page 46



Definition

Sep 16 Oct 16 Nov 16 Dec 16 Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 17 Apr 17 May 17 Jun 17 Jul 17 Aug 17 Ave

+12.9% +13.2% +7.5% +8.3% +6.8% +4.6% +3.6% +1.7% +0.5% +0.6% 0% 0% +5.0%

PID Reference

Current RAG Red - 70.5%

Of the Children in Care who became looked after and therefore whose Initial Health Assessment was 

due in the period, the percentage of those whose Initial Health Assessment took place within 20 

working days of the date they became looked after.

% of Initial Health Assessments taking place within 20 working days

Theme Health & Wellbeing

This is an improving indicator.  There are robust partnerships in place between Health and SCS to deliver and ensure 

there is ongoing scrutiny of the timeliness and capacity for initial health assessments.  This partnership is delivering 

improvements to the completion of the health assessments.  Both agencies are aware this focus and scrutiny needs 

to continue so this indicator moves to a 90% completion rate.

Commentary

Last 12 months

% Difference between exc. 

and inc. UASC

Number of children whose Initial Health Assessment took place more than 20 working days after their period of care started 

by age and legal status

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent exc. UASC Kent inc. UASC

5 6 

31 
36 

33 

11 

16 5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

0-4Yrs 5-9Yrs 10-15Yrs 16+Yrs

In Care Accommodated

158 

68 63 52 

28 

10 25 
16 

10 

7 
22 

25 

0

50

100

150

200

250

0-4Yrs 5-9Yrs 10-15Yrs 16+Yrs

No Date Recorded Outside Timescale Within Timescale

Produced by: SC SCS Management Information

Publication Date: 03/10/2017 CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017 Page 7 of 11

Page 47



Definition

Sep 16 Oct 16 Nov 16 Dec 16 Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 17 Apr 17 May 17 Jun 17 Jul 17 Aug 17 Ave

+4.0% +4.4% +3.9% +3.2% +2.7% +2.6% +3.2% +3.9% +4.3% +5.3% +5.4% +4.9% +4.0%

Number of children who have not had their health assessment within timescale

Commentary

% of Health assessments held within required timescale

Theme Health & Wellbeing

5 Year trend graph (Sep 12 - Aug 17) Last 12 months

% Difference between exc. 

and inc. UASC

PID Reference

Current RAG Red - 84.5%

K20 This indicator shows the percentage of Kent Children in Care whose period of care began prior to 1st 

April of the current reporting year and who have had their relevant health assessments.

This performance measure includes a combination of Initial Health Assessments which need to be undertaken within 28 days of a child/young 

person coming into care, and Review Health Assessments which need to be undertaken as a minimum of every 12 months (every 6 months for 

those under the age of 5).

Performance against this indicator is impacted by the numbers of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC), particularly those that are 

long term missing (25 children) and therefore are not available to undertake their Health Assessments.  Overall performance excluding UASC for 

August 2017 was 89.4%, just short of the 90% Target.  

In order to ensure that the demand and timescales for health assessments are met information on forthcoming and overdue health 

assessments is being regularly shared with NHS staff.  The Assistant Director for Corporate Parenting is liasing directly with key contacts for 

Looked After Children within the NHS to ensure that these are escalated appropriately and that future demand is being planned for. The Lead 

CCG Commissioner has approved an increase in resource and is monitoring performance with the health provider.

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent exc. UASC Kent inc. UASC

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

12 14 

61 

126 
4 

22 

0

50

100

150

200

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs 16+ Yrs

Children Currently Missing Kent (exc. Missing)

UASC LAC 
111 
46% 

Citizen LAC 
128 
54% 

Produced by: SC SCS Management Information

Publication Date: 03/10/2017 CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017 Page 8 of 11

Page 48



Definition

% of CIC aged at least 17.5 with a health history completed

Theme Health & Wellbeing

The collation of data to measure the completion of health histories is a new measure and will slowly reflect an 

increasing trend.  Health and Children and Young People's Services work together to ensure this new system of 

measuring health history completion is implemented.

The CCG Accountable Officer Group has been appraised of the legacy of poor compliance in this area to ensure that 

the health provider prioritises this area of work.

PID Reference

Current RAG Red - 5.9%

Of the looked after children aged between 17.5 and 18 at the month end, the percentage of those 

who have a Health History Completed on Liberi

Last 12 months

Number of children aged 17.5 and 18 as at month end without Health History Recorded

Commentary

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent inc UASC Kent exc UASC

121 

38 

5 

43 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

UASC LAC Citizen LAC

Female Male

Produced by: SC SCS Management Information

Publication Date: 03/10/2017 CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017 Page 9 of 11

Page 49



Definition

Commentary

PID Reference A01

Current RAG Red - 61.3%

% of cases where Adoption was agreed as the plan within 4 months (Children 

with an Agency Decision)

Theme Adoption

The definition for this measure requires Adoption to be the sole plan at the 2nd Review, which is a maximum of four 

months after a child becomes ‘Looked After’ by the Local Authority.   Some children will however have had more 

than 2 reviews within this timescale.  For a number of children alternative plans were still being considered at the 

second review and this will be the correct course of action for these children as reunification to parents or extended 

family options will be being considered.

For 43 children over the rolling 12 month period a decision on Adoption as the plan for permance was not agreed by 

four months of them coming into care.  For 16 of these children the decision was in the fourth month, so just 

outside of the timescale.  Timeliness of decision making in the adoption process is closely tracked by the Adoption 

Service who will escalate any concerns to the relevent Service Manager.

Number of children where adoption wasn't agreed as the plan within 4 months by how many months it took for to be agreed

5 Year trend graph (Sep 12 - Aug 17) Last 12 months

Number of children where adoption wasn't agreed as the plan within 4 months by age and gender

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

4th month 
16 

37% 

5th month 
10 

23% 
6th month 

6 
14% 

7th month 
2 

5% 

8+ months 
9 

21% 

8 
5 4 

2 
4 

2 

10 

5 

1 
2 

0

5

10

15

20

0 1 2 3 4 5

Female Male

Produced by: SC SCS Management Information

Publication Date: 03/10/2017 CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017 Page 10 of 11

Page 50



Definition

Performance against this indicator has dropped slightly from the previous month. The absence of a completed form 

continues to impact on performance (20%) as do interviews completed 1 day out of timescale (15%).

% of Returner Interviews completed within 3 working days for CIC

Theme Missing Children

Last 12 months

Commentary

This indicator shows the percentage of CIC Missing Children Returner Interviews that were 

completed within 3 working days of the missing episode ending.
PID Reference

Current RAG Red - 74.7%

Returner Interviews Completed Outside of Timescale by How Far Out of Timescale the Interview Was

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent

37 

16 

7 4 
8 7 

31 

2 3 6 

69 

50 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

1 day 2 days 3 days 4 days 5 days 6 days 1-2 weeks 2-3 weeks 3-4 weeks 1-2
months

2-3
months

>3 months RI Did Not
Take Place

No
Complete

Form
Recorded

Produced by: SC SCS Management Information

Publication Date: 03/10/2017 CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017 Page 11 of 11

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 18 September 2017
	OCYPC update - 18 September 2017

	6 Corporate Parenting Challenge Cards
	7 Verbal Update by Cabinet Member
	8 Safer care for children living away from home
	9 Accommodation and housing options for 16/17 year old homeless young people, children in care and care leavers
	10 Performance scorecard for Children in Care
	Item 10 Appx - CIC Performance Report - Aug 2017


